Agenda - Public Accounts Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 3 - Senedd Fay Bowen

Meeting date: Monday, 23 January Committee Clerk

2017 0300 200 6565

Meeting time: 14.00 SeneddPAC@assembly.wales

(The Committee agreed on 16 January 2017, a motion under Standing

Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public for Item 1 of this

meeting.)

The Welsh Government’s Funding of Kancoat Ltd: Consideration of

the draft report
(14.15 - 15.00) (Pages 1 - 12)

PAC(5)-03-17 Paper 1 - Draft Report

(Public Meeting)

Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest
(15.00)

Paper(s) to note
(15.00 - 15.05) (Pages 13 - 15)

The Welsh Government’s Funding of Kancoat Ltd: Letters from the Welsh

Government (6 January 2017) and (16 January 2017)

(Pages 16 - 18)

Cardiff Airport: Letter from the Welsh Government (16 January 2017)

(Page 19)

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



4 NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales
(15.05 - 15-50) (Pages 20 - 47)

Research Briefing
PAC(5)-03-17 Paper 2 - Update from the Welsh Government

Dr Andrew Goodall - Director General/NHS Chief Executive
Simon Dean - Deputy Chief Executive NHS Wales

Frank Atherton - Chief Medical Officer

Andrew Carruthers - Delivery Programme Director

5 Orthopaedic Services: Update from the Welsh Government
(15.50 - 16.35) (Pages 48 - 52)

Research Briefing
PAC(5)-03-17 Paper 3 - Update from the Welsh Government

Dr Andrew Goodall - Director General/NHS Chief Executive
Simon Dean - Deputy Chief Executive NHS Wales

Frank Atherton - Chief Medical Officer

Andrew Carruthers - Delivery Programme Director

6 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the following business:
(16.35)

Iltem 7 of today’s meeting

7 Consideration of evidence received
(16.35 -17.00)



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 1

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



Agenda Item 3

Concise Minutes - Public Accounts Committee

Meeting Venue: This meeting can be viewed
on Senedd TV at:
http://senedd.tv/en/3907

Committee Room 3 - Senedd

Meeting date: Monday, 16 January 2017

Meeting time: 14.00 - 16.36

Attendance

Category Names

Nick Ramsay AM (Chair)
Mohammad Asghar (Oscar) AM
Mike Hedges AM

Assembly Members:
Neil McEvoy AM

Rhianon Passmore AM

Lee Waters AM

Steve Clarke, Welsh Tenants Federation

Neil Howell, Torfaen County Borough Council
Witnesses: Jim McKirdle, Welsh Local Government Association
Gavin Smart, Chartered Institute of Housing (CIH) UK

David Wilton, TPAS

Huw Vaughan Thomas - Auditor General for Wales

Gillian Body - Assistant Auditor for Wales
Wales Audit Office
Nick Selwyn - Wales Audit Office

F’ Cynulliad National
/‘ Cenedlaethol Assembly for
Cymru Wales Pack Page 13


http://senedd.tv/
http://senedd.tv/en/3907

Fay Bowen (Clerk)
Committee Staff: Claire Griffiths (Deputy Clerk)

Jonathan Baxter (Researcher)

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest

1.1 The Chair welcomed Members of the Committee.
1.2 Apologies were received from Neil Hamilton AM. There was no substitute.

2 Paper(s) to note
2.1 The papers were noted.
2.1 Coastal flood and erosion risk management in Wales: Additional information from

the Welsh Government (6 January 2017)

2.2 NHS Wales Health Board’s Governance: Letter from the Cabinet Secretary for

Health, Well-being and Sport (9 January 2017)

3 Inquiry into Regulatory oversight of Housing Associations: Evidence

Session 1

3.1 The Committee took evidence Steve Clarke, Managing Director, Welsh Tenants and
David Wilton, Director, Tenant Participation Advisory Service (TPAS Cymru) as part of its

inquiry into the Regulatory oversight of Housing Associations.

4 Inquiry into Regulatory oversight of Housing Associations: Evidence

Session 2

4.1 The Committee took evidence Jim McKirdle, Housing Policy Officer, Welsh Local
Government Association, Neil Howell, Head of Housing & Business Support, Torfaen
County Borough Council and Gavin Smart, Deputy Chief Executive, Chartered Institute
of Housing (CIH) UK as part of its inquiry into the Regulatory oversight of Housing

Associations.

Pack Page 14



5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the public

from the meeting for the following business:
5.1 The motion was agreed.

6 Inquiry into Regulatory oversight of Housing Associations:

Consideration of evidence received

6.1 Members considered the evidence received.

7 Auditor General for Wales: Forward Work Programme

7.1 The Auditor General for Wales addressed the Committee on his forthcoming work
programme and Draft strategy for the Auditor General for Wales and the Wales Audit
Office 2017-2020.

Pack Page 15



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-03-17 PTNI1

Agenda Item 3.1

’\/ (f

Adran yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth ,J)

Department for Economy, Science and Natural Resources

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Nick Ramsay AM
Public Accounts Committee

6 January 2017

Dear Mr Ramsay

Further to your letter of 6 December, | am writing with additional information in relation to
the mitigation of risks assessed, considered during the appraisal process for the Kancoat
case. They are as follows:

1.

Failure to achieve viable level of orders — evidence was provided in the form of a sales
contract with one customer and numerous positive email exchanges with other potential
customers

Failure to obtain the right people — payment of grant was against specific agreed
recruitment milestones

Failure of Products supplied to customers — intensive product trials were underway with
interested potential customers and batch sampling of coatings

Failure of Products supplied as incoming stock — the business plan was split equally
between toll coating material supplied by customers and coating sourced steel

Failure of process equipment — the coating line was already being utilised for product
and customer trials

Extended prequalification trials — product and customer trials were already underway

Failure to supply to customers on time — lead times from Kancoat were considerably
shorter than industry standard due to a more flexible approach on smaller batch runs
than competitors and the product was to be a mix of customer supplied and directly
sourced

Loss of Key Personnel — the director was very committed to the project and employed a
strong staff team who displayed a strong personal commitment to the success of the
business

Canollfan QED Q[ED Centre A
BUDDSODDWYR | INVESTORS Y Brif Rodfa + Main Avenue _ Ffon e Tel 0300 061 5691

Trefforest e Treforest mick.mcguire@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Y
v v
!‘-\ L‘y MEWN POBL IN PEOFFhﬁck Page 16 CF37 5YR Gwefan e website: www.wales.gov.uk


www.wales.gov.uk

9. Under achievement of production targets — the volumes indicated in the business plan
were significantly below the maximum production capacity of the coating line as stated
in initial specifications

10.Energy Price rises — evidence was provided in the form an agreement was in place
between Kancoat and Alcoa for long term energy supply, covering pricing and volume

11.Insured Risks — evidence was provided that confirmed all relevant insurances were in
place

Yours sincerely

Mick McGuire
Director, Sectors and Business

Pack Page 17



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-03-17 PTN2

\/ T,
Adran yr Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth

Department for Economy, Science and Natural Resources ,J)

Llywodraeth Cymru
Nick Ramsay AM Welsh Government
Public Accounts Committee

16 January 2017
Dear Mr Ramsay
Thank you for your letter of 15 December with further queries regarding Kancoat.

The Kancoat business plan was not dependent on a single supplier. It was predicated on
being split 50/50 between toll coating material supplied by customers and coating steel
sourced by Kancoat directly.

On 15 August 2013, two charges were taken by Welsh ministers to provide security for the
Welsh Government; a fixed charge against the coating line and a floating charge against all
other assets as part of the loan agreement. These charges remain in place and should the
Kancoat assets be sold the Welsh Government will recoup some of its investment. It was
considered that the original valuation of £5 million from an independent valuation agency
(GVA), supplied as part of Kancoat’s business plan in support of their application for
funding, had satisfactory headroom and remained sufficiently current. The valuation was a
market value for bank security purposes. A further valuation of the asset was
commissioned on September 2014 stating the value at £3.13 million, also in excess of
Welsh Government’s exposure. It is accepted that an independent valuation could have
been undertaken.

The Bryngwyn closure in 2001 was not considered at the time that the Kancoat business
plan was reviewed, given the time elapsed. However, the Taufanabach closure in 2012 was
considered. This closure was part of a restructuring exercise and some of the products and
volumes produced there relocated to European plants. We understand that the decision
was primarily taken as part of a rationalisation programme, consolidating at other plants and
divesting the business of sites which consequently became redundant. The closure
supported Kancoat’s business plan in that there were no volume producers of lacquered
strip in the UK and that there was a gap in the market for Kancoat to offer smaller batch
runs, bespoke products and shorter lead times.

Yours sincerely

Mick McGuire
Director, Sectors and Business

Canolfan QED e QED Centre .
BUDDSODDWYR INVESTORS Y Brif Rodfa ¢ Main Avenue . Ffon ) e Tel 0300 061 5691

£~
('3 N
v v Trefforest e Treforest mick.mcguire@wales.gsi.gov.uk
v v
Ny o MEWN POBL IN PEOFFQQCI( Page 18 Pontypridd, CF37 5YR Gwefan e website: www.wales.gov.uk


www.wales.gov.uk

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee

PAC(5)-03-17 PTN3
Agendali

(
Grwp yr Economi, Sgiliau a Chyfoeth Naturiol ’\/( -
Economy, Skills and Natural Resources Group ,J)

2

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Nick Ramsay AM
Public Accounts Committee

16 January 2017
Dear Mr Ramsay
Thank you for your letter of 15 December regarding Cardiff Aviation Limited (CAL).

A due diligence exercise was carried out on Cardiff Aviation Ltd in April 2012, by the Welsh
Government prior to CAL taking occupation of the Twin Peaks building (Building 282 at St
Athan). The due diligence report contains company commercially sensitive information and
therefore we are unable to release it. The report is based on analysis of financial
projections and qualitative detail contained in the business plan along with supporting
correspondence, none of which is in the public domain.

To date, CAL has not paid any rent for their use of Twin Peaks. The company has put
forward a number of reasons for not doing so. The Welsh Government disputes the basis
for the non-payment, and we note that other companies operate from St Athan successfully
without any issues. The Welsh Government is currently seeking legal advice regarding
potential remedies and the recovery of the outstanding debt.

Officials have not received any direct correspondence from prospective third party
customers of CAL expressing concerns about the facilities and services at St Athan.
Neither was the Welsh Government involved in assisting CAL to bid for work with the
company identified in your letter. Accordingly, we cannot provide any assessment of why
CAL may have been unsuccessful in bidding for work.

Yours sincerely

Simon Jones
Director Transport and ICT Infrastructure

Canolfan QED e QED Centre

£7 N : . n
e' ‘9 BUDDSODDWAYR | INVESTORS Y anTl:g?ffoare.sﬁA f ]'rllrg\f/srneu:: si moEf?gne.s(;sba?zg.oqgii)o%?aﬁ
Y MEWN POBL | IN PEOPLE Pack Pageub@id, CF375R  Gwefan s website: www.wales.gov.uk


mailto:simon.jones@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.wales.gov.uk

Ag en d a Ite m 4 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 20



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-03-17 P2

Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/
Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru

Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ( f
N /

Director General Health and Social Services/ f
NHS Wales Chief Executive J)
Health and Social Services Group

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Nick Ramsay, AM

Chair — Public Accounts Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay,

Cardiff,

CF99 1NA
Our Ref: AG/IM
9 January 2017

Dear Mr Ramsay

Public Accounts Committee — NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales &
Orthopaedic Services

Thank you for your invitation to attend committee on 23 January 2017, in my role as Chief
Executive of NHS Wales. | understand you wish to discuss NHS Waiting Times for Elective
Care in Wales & Orthopaedic Services.

As requested, | enclose a written update in advance of my attendance.

Yours sincerely
ﬁ-’\' ot ¥ 4~n e

Dr Andrew Goodall

Ffon e Tel 02920 801182/1144
Andrew.Goodall@wales.gsi.gov.uk

g‘ “~9 BUDDSODDWYR | INVESTORS P vdd  Eardit
% _& MEWN POBL | IN PEORRRCk Page 36 CFI03NQ  Gwefan e website: www.wales.gov.uk


mailto:Simon.Dean@wales.gsi.gov.uk
file:///C:/Users/Williamsd2/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/33J4AKTH/www.wales.gov.uk

Public Accounts Committee - NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales

The Committee wishes to discuss the progress since the WAO report into NHS
Waiting Times for Elective Care was published in January 2015. The report had nine
recommendations and an update against those recommendations was provided in
December 2016, as well as being included as an annex at the end of this letter.

Since the report was published in January 2015, the Welsh Government has been
working closely with health boards and other interested parties, including
representatives of the public, to address the recommendations. This has been
achieved through national events, where health boards, Community Health Councils
and patient groups have been represented and have been able to express their
views.

A national Planned Care Programme (PCP) has been set up, led by a senior
clinician from Aneurin Bevan University Health Board. The aim of the programme is
to develop a strategic and sustainable service and improve patient experience. The
programme has already launched four speciality plans that account for 70% of the
long waiting patients and is now working on the next phase. The PCP is also leading
on sharing best practice amongst health boards, based on actions currently
underway in the speciality specific plans. Examples of this include the development
of Ophthalmic Diagnostic and Treatment Centres (ODTCs), which were originally in
place to deliver glaucoma support. Through the PCP, the Ophthalmic Board has
been asked to explore ways of how the ODTCs can be used more widely to deliver
other services.

Two national events have taken place to share good practice and to identify areas of
priority for review. From these national events, two task and finish groups were
established looking at patient communication and revision of the RTT guidance. The
revision of the RTT guidance is underway and is linked with the re-launch of the
Guide to Good Practice, a document that sets out principles for managing patients
on an elective waiting list. The first part of the Guide to Good Practice will be
launched at the end of March 2017.

The latest redraft of the RTT guidance has been circulated to an initial group of
colleagues within the NHS for comment before being circulated wider. It is intended
that the refreshed rules will be available for April 2017, and that this will be a living
document with regular updates and a FAQ section.

Public engagement has also been sought as part of the redesign programme for
outpatients to test and explore what is currently working well and what isn’t. This has
mainly been developed in North Wales, where a patient information leaflet has been
developed in conjunction with patient groups and representatives of the Community
Health Council.

The patient leaflet informs patients about the RTT process and their roles and
responsibilities within it and is being tested at Betsi Cadwaladr Health Board. The
leaflet clearly explains what the patient can expect after being referred by their GP to
secondary care, and what is expected of them, outlining what could happen if the

1
Pack Page 37



patient does not turn up for an appointment and does not let the hospital know
beforehand.

On publishing relevant data, we have worked with colleagues within Knowledge and
Analytical Services (KAS). Data on median waits are now published; however, it was
recognised that publishing data on waiting times for urgent and routine appointments
would prove complicated, as patients can move from being urgent to routine and vice
versa along the pathway, as this is a decision for the consultant responsible for a
patient’s care to make.

1. Performance
1.1 Referrals

The number of GP referrals, non-GP referrals and total referrals has increased since
April 2012. Some of this increase is due to a change in reporting of non-GP referrals,
but the overall number of GP referrals has increased. In the 12 months ending
October 2016, the number of GP referrals was 9% higher than in the 12 months
ending October 2013, and the total number of referrals was 16% higher.

1.2 Activity

Each month, there are around 28,000 elective admissions to NHS hospitals in
Wales. This is as well as the 33,000 emergency admissions each month. The NHS
in Wales does well to manage both the unscheduled and scheduled care demand on
a day to day basis and the Committee has been updated previously on unscheduled
care. To assist with unscheduled care, health boards refocus their planned care
delivery to outpatients and day case activity, thus reducing the requirement on
inpatient beds during the winter months.

The number of elective admissions over the 12 months ending October 2016 is 2.3%
higher than the previous 12 months.

RTT data looks at waiting times for both open and closed pathways. For the period
April to October 2015 and similarly for 2016, closed pathways for non-admitted and
admitted patients have increased by over 27,000 or 4.7%. Of those, 26,000 more
were closed for those waiting less than 26 weeks.

Data collected on closed pathways is for both admitted and non-admitted patients.
With the growth of prudent healthcare and the redesign of the way services are
delivered, we would expect to see a reduction in elective inpatient and day case
activity for some pathways, as patients are more appropriately seen and treated via
a non-admitted treatment. Examples include the changes in the ENT pathways, to
community services and for some orthopaedic pathways, where exercise and weight
management services have negated the need for surgery.

2
Pack Page 38



1.3 Waiting list size

Whilst the number of open pathways over 26 weeks and 36 weeks has reduced, the
overall size of the waiting list has increased and is now 6% higher than it was in
January 2015. However, it is 1% lower than the high point of August 2015.

1.4 Comparison with previous years

It has been a common historical occurrence each year that waiting times increase
from the end of March, before reducing in the final quarter of the year. The final
quarter is generally the busiest time when health boards are also trying to cope with
unscheduled care pressures.

Despite the November 2016 position being an increase on the March 2016 position,
the increase seen this year has been less than in previous years, showing a more
stable position for improvement to the end of the financial year. The latest data, for
the end of November 2016, shows that the increase this year has been 19%, whilst
in 2015-16 there was a 37% increase in the number of open pathways over 36
weeks and in 2014-15, the increase was 86%. This has been achieved by health
boards targeting the elective inpatient work earlier in the year which will enable them
to focus on daycase and outpatient work in the final quarter whilst dealing with
unscheduled care pressures, as they have set out in their Integrated Medium Term
Plans, which show how they will use capacity and manage demand throughout the
year.

This is shown in table 1 in the annex.
1.5 26 week position

When the report was published in January 2015, the 26 week RTT position in Wales
was 84.3% against a 95% target. Since then, improvements have been seen, with
performance in March 2016 being 86.8%, 2.5 percentage points higher than January
2015. Although there has been a slight deterioration recently, performance in
November 2016 was 86.2%, which was higher than January 2015 and 2.7
percentage points higher than the low of 83.5% seen in December 2015.

A chart showing the performance since January 2015 is in the annex.
1.6 36 week position

Since the report was published in January 2015, waiting times in Wales for elective
services have improved.

In January 2015, the number of open pathways over 36 weeks was 23,532; following
additional support during 2015-16 to improve RTT and diagnostics by the end of
March 2016, the number of open pathways fell to 17,190. This was the best position
reported since May 2014.

Although there has been an increase in the number of open pathways over 36 weeks
by November 2016 to 20,385, this was still a fall of 13% compared to January 2015.

3
Pack Page 39



The November 2016 position is an improvement of 8,269 (29%) compared to the
high of 28,652 in August 2015 and is 5,487 (21%) better than November 2015.

All health boards in Wales are in a better position in November 2016 than they were
in November 2015.

A chart showing open pathways over 36 weeks since January 2015 is shown in the
annex.

1.7 52 week position:

Since January 2015, the number of open pathways over 52 weeks has increased
from 3,335 to 4,570 at the end of November 2016. However, the figure now is 9%
lower than the high of 5,042 in December 2015.

Where patients are waiting over 36 and 52 weeks, health boards are expected to
carry out regular clinical and clerical validation to ensure that patients still require
their appointments / procedures and are not coming to any clinical harm whilst
waiting.

1.8 Cancer delivery

Cancer delivery has different targets to RTT, but it utilises the same capacity.
Increases in demand and numbers treated in cancer can reduce the capacity
available for more routine RTT pathways.

Although delivery against target remains a challenge for cancer services, more
patients are being referred for cancer supported care and treated within target times
than ever. Over the last 12 months, the number of referrals for urgent suspected
cancer was 90,074. There were 73,787 referrals for the period October 2014 —
September 2015. This is an increase of 22%.

In the last 12 months (November 2015 to October 2016), 6,210 patients newly
diagnosed with cancer via the Urgent Suspected Cancer (USC) route started
definitive treatment within the target time of 62 days. This is 8.4% (481 patients)
higher than the previous 12 month period (November 2014 to October 2015) and is
39% higher than five years ago.

In addition, during the same period, 7,222 people started definitive treatment for
urgent suspected cancer. This is 7.1% higher than the previous 12 months and 44%
higher than five years ago.

In the last 12 months (November 2015 to October 2016), 9,522 patients newly
diagnosed with cancer not via the Urgent route (NUSC) started definitive treatment
within the target time of 31 days. This is 5.1% (465 patients) higher than the previous
12 month period (November 2014 to October 2015), but is 3% (292 people) lower
than five years ago.

4
Pack Page 40



1.9 Diagnostics

Data for the end of November 2016 showed that 10,316 people were waiting over
eight weeks for one of the specified diagnostic tests in Wales. This is 10,629 (51%)
lower than January 2015, and is 63% lower than the highest number of patients over
eight weeks recorded in January 2014.

During the last 12 months, the number of people waiting over eight weeks has
reduced by 23%, and the majority (96%) of those currently waiting over eight weeks
are waiting in South East Wales health boards (Aneurin Bevan, Cardiff and Vale and
Cwm Taf). These health boards have plans in place to reduce waiting times by the
end of March 2017 and are working to put sustainable services in place going
forward. To tackle backlog, the health boards are outsourcing some activity and
making use of mobile scanners.

The aim is that by the end of March 2017, of the reduced number of over eight week
breaches the majority will be waiting for a diagnostic endoscopy only. We will expect
IMTP submissions for next year to focus on how this is maintained and the remaining
diagnostic endoscopy backlog removed.

1.10 Efficiency work

Individual measure bundles based on previous national efficiency measures have
been developed for each health board. Each health board bundle has individual
targets based on firstly reducing variation and then achieving national best in class.

These bundles are supported by a template for health boards to complete as part of
their IMTP response to demonstrate how they plan to improve delivery against their
targets. Compliance with these should unlock opportunities to transform services to
support delivery of RTT and unscheduled care targets by releasing potential capacity
within the system. This may be in terms of bed days, appointment slots or theatre
operating sessions.

Progress against the trajectories will be monitored and performance managed
through the established performance process. Quarterly progress reports will be
provided to the national efficiency group for information.

1.11 Position in England

Long waiting times is not a phenomenon unique to Wales; performance in England
has been deteriorating over the last year, and there has been a 13% increase seen
in the number of open pathways in England over the last 12 months. There has also
been a deterioration in 18 week performance, with the performance in October the
lowest it had been since March 2011. In addition, the number of open pathways over
52 weeks in England at the end of October 2016 was the highest it had been since
September 2012.

5
Pack Page 41



1.12 Actions to reduce waiting times

All health boards have action plans in place to reduce the number of open pathways
over 36 weeks. This includes:

2.

Running additional sessions locally and securing treatment for some patients
at alternative providers to reduce backlog, whilst health boards develop more
sustainable services in line with their Integrated Medium Term Plans.

o One example of this is in Aneurin Bevan UHB, who are sending
ophthalmology patients to Bristol for cataract treatment while they
develop services locally. The majority of routine cataract follow-ups
are now being carried out by optometrists in the community, with
nurse injectors working in the community to deliver AMD injections.

In addition, some of the outsourcing also involves the external provider
coming into the health board to carry out work on weekends and in the
evenings, whilst using the health board resources, which may include health
board staff.

o An example being Hywel Dda for dermatology services.

Health boards have also employed additional staff and ‘upskilled’ some staff
such as Clinical Nurse Specialists, sonographers and Nurse Endoscopists to
undertake activity previously undertaken by medical staff, and as such,
increased capacity.

o An example being Cwm Taf UHB, where they have changed the way
ENT services are delivered, with primary and secondary care
clinicians working together to develop referral criteria and pathways,
with some services now being delivered in primary care by specialist
nurses.

As part of the development of integrated services, health boards have been
working with primary care to develop services in the community to reduce
referral to specialist care and provide assessment and treatment locally
where clinically appropriate

o An example being Clinical Musculoskeletal Assessment Team service
CMATSs, where primary care referrals are received, assessed and
triaged to the most clinically appropriate pathway, not necessarily
orthopaedic surgery. This has shown to manage patients successfully
without the need for surgery.

Planned Care Programme

Recognising that waiting times were too long, we have established a clinician led
Planned Care Programme (PCP) to improve patient experience and deliver a
strategic and sustainable approach to planned care in Wales, supporting effective
service change across a number of key specialities, including orthopaedics,
ophthalmology, ENT and urology. A fifth speciality — dermatology - will be introduced
shortly. The four specialities with plans already launched account for 70% of all open
pathways over 36 weeks at the end of November 2016.

The aims of the programme are to improve patient experience across the planned
care specialities, by ensuring that patients are seen in the right place, at the right

6
Pack Page 42



time, by the right professional, through the monitoring and analysis of Patient
Reported Experience Measures (PREMS) by May 2020.

The Programme, through each of the clinically led groups, sets out clear
expectations of the service and is working closely with each health board to ensure
that new and appropriate pathways are designed and delivered as well as exploring
innovative ways to ensure that systems are in place to manage demand for
secondary care and to minimise the demand and capacity gap for each service. This
will include the innovative use of primary care, as with the work currently being
piloted for the ophthalmology programme, where routine follow-up appointments are
being carried out in primary care by optometrists rather than in secondary care for
cataract surgery patients, nurse injectors are being used in the community for AMD
and the use of Ophthalmic Diagnostic and Treatment Centres are being used for
glaucoma patients.

The national orthopaedic plan builds on the actions outlined in response to the WAO
report into Orthopaedic Services in Wales, as well as the previous work undertaken
as part of the National Orthopaedic Group. This includes building on the use of
CMATS to triage patients to ensure that only those that require surgery progress and
that other patients are referred to the most appropriate clinician to be seen.

Following an action in the prudent healthcare plan, the PCP has established an
Outpatients Transformation Programme — this has the aim of radically transforming
the way outpatient services are delivered in the longer term, whilst ensuring some
short term improvements are seen over the next few months. This will include
breaking down the barriers and the expectation that patients need to have a face to
face meeting with a consultant in secondary care, and move towards an assessment
with a trained member of a multi-disciplinary team who will be able to provide the
appropriate advice and care in a setting that is closer to the patient’'s home. This is
also the main area of joint links with the primary care programme. An example of this
is in Cwm Taf UHB, who have developed a cardiac services model, with GPs with
special interests working alongside consultants and pharmacists to deliver care in a
community setting.

Long waits in three of the four planned care specialities have shown a reduction in
breaches comparing October 2015 to October 2016. Over the last 12 months, 36
week breaches in ophthalmology have reduced by 43%, ENT by 28% and urology by
25%. However, it is noted that orthopaedic over 36 week breaches have shown a
4.2% increase over the same period. While it is recognised that more work is
required to continue to improve on this position, the focus has helped health board
clinicians and managers to review their service delivery models. While they are
redesigning and building a more sustainable model, there remains a commitment to
reduce the backlog.

7
Pack Page 43



Over 36 week waits for PCP specialities

10,000
Ophthalmic P ~\

9,000 A plan launched A// \/\/ \/—

8,000

7,000 I e T80 plan

6,000 {/\/ -

5 000 \L /\/\ ENT plan Urology plan

) Y launched | | launched T

4,000 \

N >4

3,000

y N~

2’000 _;/_,V g 7

1,000 2

0 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
wn n n n [Tp] wn wn n n n N n (o) (o) (o} (o) (o) (e} Vo] (Vo] (o) (o) (o)
ATARATA R s v ALy ru N AL A NP S U v LTS URA AR A Y
[ o) = = > C = oo Q. + > [$] C QO = = > C = oo o + >
s¢32L3FFFcsédsesz2E2=28028
e ENT === Ophthalmology Urology e=—T&O
3. Primary Healthcare

In the past, the referral to treatment target has been viewed as a secondary care
measure, and as such, for managers and clinicians in hospitals to address. Through
both the planned and primary health care programmes, the important and integral
role of primary care is recognised. Through the planned care service specific plans, it

clearly shows the importance of primary care and its critical role to the success of
any future delivery of sustainable models.

The outpatient transformation programme is seen as one of the main links between
the two programmes. The importance of prudent health co-production starts in
primary care; this needs to be supported by improved communication, improved use
of technology and improved access to advice and tests. The national digital health
strategy is critical to supporting this agenda through the use of electronic patient

information to support improved communication and patient outcomes and
experience.

Examples being:

e The use of electronic referral and discharge letters supporting safe electronic
communication across the pathway.

¢ Viewing access to all pathology and diagnostic tests regardless where they
were requested or undertaken to aid informed referral and to reduce possible
waste, through duplication of tests.

4. Regional Planning / Working

Through the IMTP planning process, we have tasked health boards to work together
to look at developing regional solutions to deliver elective services. There are a

8
Pack Page 44




number of examples of regional planning / working already in place across Wales,
and these include:

the ARCH programme — a mechanism for strategic service planning
discussions between Abertawe Bro Morgannwg and Hywel Dda University
Health Boards and Swansea University;

the Mid Wales Collaborative — which is looking at developing health services
across Hywel Dda, Powys and Betsi Cadwaladr Health Boards;

the South Central Acute Care Alliance (SCACA), comprising officials from
Cwm Taf, Cardiff and Vale and Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Boards
which has been established to implement the recommendations of the South
Wales Programme in relation to the South Wales Central region; and

the establishment of a major trauma network, including a trauma centre for
South Wales, which has come from work carried out by the All Wales Health
Collaborative;

the development of a diagnostic hub in Cwm Taf to deliver diagnostic
services for Cwm Taf and the surrounding areas;

In addition, Cardiff and Vale University Health Board is developing services
in partnership with its two local authority partners, i.e. Cardiff Council and the
Vale of Glamorgan Council. This is more focussed on the strategic
integration of health and social care across the region.

9
Pack Page 45



Annex 1

Chart 1: 26 week performance since January 2015

100.0%

95.0%

90.0%

26 week performance

ABMU

= Aneurin Bevan

W ——BCU

85.0% _
e Cardiff & Vale
80.0% - e CWm Taf
75.0% Hywel Dda
70.0% T T T T T T T T T T T POWyS
2088880888898 AWk
EEri3sE553§5
Chart 2: 36 week performance since January 2015
36 week numbers
30,000
.
19 .
1l = _ @R 1 6
25,000 e Hl‘ { I | ' I | ||| - i Powys
20,000 I!I Il | I||l | |||| | l—' & Hywel Dda
. ", V. "_._-' [ |||
15,000 | |ii| | ||l| A |||“' l ||i!..| B @ Cwm Taf
S e | O I 14 YR 7'__ .
10,000 [ I||||||| I | “l | i i i - i“, il 8 Cardiff & Vale
 BCU
5,000 N1 " "
l l l U5 3 59 5 5 H Aneurin Bevan
0
m w99 g g g g g WM
S 5 53 $ 8 5553 % 3
- > s T n oz = > s 7w oz

10
Pack Page 46




Chart 3: Diagnostic breaches since January 2015

Diagnostic breaches over 8 weeks

25,000

20,000 i Powys
L E Hywel Dda

) [’ 1 -
|||i ' l , & Cwm Taf
" i oy 1= ‘7"7 @M © Cardiff & Vale
” 7 ||| -
=h=47 7- T |||| ¥ EBCU

M Aneurin Bevan

15,000 ¥

10,000 -{MINE
|

5,000 ||

0 -
S 9% 92 9 9 9 9 < 9 9 9 4
c = > 5 a 2 € = > =S a >
s & ® 2 9o 0 & & ®™m 2 o O
- =S woZz =S w z

Table 1: Increase / decrease in waiting times

% inc/ % incf % inc/ % inc f %inc/
inc f dec dec inc / dec dec inc/ dec dec inc { dec dec inc [ dec dec

Mar-12  Nov-12 Mar-Nov Mar-Nov Mar-13 Mar-Nov Mar-Nov Mar-14  Nov-14 Mar-Nov Mar-Nov Mar-15 Mar-Nov Mar-Nov Mar-16 Mar-Nov Mar-Nov
ABMU 236 340 -104] -44% 378 1,518 -1,140 -302% 2,095 3,997 -1,902 A1% 5,339 4,717 622 12% 3,843 3,817 26 1%
Aneurin Bevan 413 -413 431 1418 -987 -229% 839l 2,935 -2,044 -229% 2,329 3,817 -1,438 -64% 2,682 2,479 203 8%
BCU 355 -355 958 4,330 -3,372 -352% 2,911 4,601 -1,690 -58% 3,142 5,603 -2,461 -78% 3,666 5,575 -1,909 52%
Cardiff & Vale 1,233 2,038 -805 -65% 2,497 2,806 -309 -12% 2,088 4,801 -2,713 -130% 2,378 3,114 -738 -31% 1,598 2,646 -1,048 -66%
Cwm Taf 145 495 -350 -241% 824 1,329 -505 -61% 638 1,487 -349 -133% 1,155 2,830 -1,675 -145% 1,120 1138 -18 -2%
Hywel Dda 779 =779 326 1,868 -1,542 -473% 1,962 1,858 104 5% 4,595 5,789 -1,194] -26% 4,281 4,730 -449 -10%
Powys 0 0 1 1 0 0
All Wales 1,614 4,425 -2,811] -174% 5,414 13,269 -7,855| -145% 10,586 19,679 -9,003| -86% 18,938 25,872 -6,934| -37% 17,190 20,385 -3,195| -19%

11
Pack Page 47



Agen

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(5)-03-17 P3

a ltem 5 ,
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/
Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru

Grwp lechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol ( f
N /

Director General Health and Social Services/ f
NHS Wales Chief Executive J)
Health and Social Services Group

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Nick Ramsay, AM
Chair
Public Accounts Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1NA
Our Ref: AG/IM

24 October 2016
Dear Mr Ramsay
Public Accounts Committee — update on implementation of recommendations from
Auditor General for Wales reports:
e Review of the Impact of Private Practice on NHS Provision (Published

February 2016)
e Orthopaedic Services (Published June 2015)

Review of the Impact of Private Practice on NHS Provision

Recommendation 1:

The guidance from the Welsh Government on how to manage private patients onto
the NHS waiting list conflicts with other guidance and is not reflected in the routine
referral to treatment documentation used by NHS bodies, resulting in a lack of
awareness and inconsistencies on where private patients are placed if they join an
NHS waiting list. The Welsh Government should therefore adopt the approach set out
in UK-wide and professional body guidance, ensuring that the referral to treatment
documentation used by NHS bodies is updated to reflect this. Health boards and
trusts then need to ensure that this guidance is implemented by all staff involved in
the administration of referral to treatment pathways within health boards and trusts.

Update Accepted

We will look to redefine the Welsh guidance as part of our review of the RTT rules to
ensure consistency and then confirm requirements to the NHS for health boards and
trusts to implement. This will form part of a proposed revised Welsh Health Circular
(WHC) and guidance which will consolidate multi policy issues around the
management and responsibilities of undertaking private practice within NHS facilities,
any early draft has been developed and will be shared with NHS for initial thoughts.

Ffon e Tel 02920 801182/1144

é" .\‘9 BUDDSODDWAYR | INVESTORS Parc Cathg;zrzjgjéhf%;f;;l; Andrew.Goodall@wales.gsi.gov.uk
N _& MEWN POBL | IN PEORRRCk Page 48 CFI03NQ  Gwefan e website: www.wales.gov.uk



mailto:Simon.Dean@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.wales.gov.uk

Recommendation 2

There is currently no requirement for health boards and trusts to identify private
patients reverting to NHS treatment on their patient administration systems, which
makes it extremely difficult to establish whether these patients are gaining faster
access to NHS treatment. The Welsh Government should update the NHS Wales
Data Dictionary and mandate the identification of private patients entering NHS
waiting lists to enable regular monitoring to take place. Through the revised guidance
set out in recommendation 1, the Welsh Government should also set out an
expectation that health boards and trusts will regularly monitor the waiting times for
this cohort of patients

Update Accepted

The Welsh Government will work with NHS bodies, to identify how to capture and
report both private practice undertaken in NHS facilities and how patients may join an
NHS waiting list from a previous private patient status and vice versa. This work will
be assured by the Welsh Information Standards Board and, when approved, will be
mandated through a Data Standards Change Notice and incorporated in the NHS
Wales Data Dictionary.

Recommendation 3

Private practice can play an important role in attracting consultants and generating
income for the NHS yet local policies lack clarity on when and how much private
practice can take place in the NHS, and monitoring arrangements to ensure that NHS
provision is not affected are weak. Where private practice is undertaken in NHS
facilities, Health boards and trusts should ensure that policies clearly state when and
how much private practice, and specifically inpatient activity, can take place to
minimise the impact on NHS resources. Private practice activity should be collected
and reported in line with the requirements of the Competition and Markets Authority,
and this information should routinely form part of the annual job planning process for
all relevant consultants to ensure policies are complied with.

Update Accepted

The Welsh Government is establishing, with NHS Employers, a Task and Finish
Group in order to undertake a review of existing guidance to ensure it reflects all
relevant responsibilities and strengthens existing monitoring arrangements. We have
already reminded NHS organisations in Wales of their obligations under the
Competition and Markets Authority Order.

Recommendation 4

The processes for recouping the costs associated with the provision of private
practice within NHS facilities are cumbersome and often reliant on out-of-date and
incorrect information. Health boards and trusts should ensure that sufficient attention
and resources are given to the cost recovery process. The level of resources should
be reflective of the scale of private practice undertaken but should be sufficient
enough to provide robust assurances to boards that income is being appropriately
recovered. A single-invoice system can assist with full cost recovery and has already
been adopted in a number of health boards. Those health boards and trusts which
are not currently operating this system should give urgent consideration to doing so.

Pack Page 49




Update Accepted

The Welsh Government, in joint partnership with the NHS through the NHS Medical,
Finance and Information Directors, will share processes from across Wales to agree
an all Wales consistent process. A Welsh Government and NHS working group will
be convened to maximise learning and best practice in support of a consistent
approach to the management and reporting of private practice within and using NHS
resources.

Orthopaedic Services.

The recommendations have been accepted and are being taken forward with the support of
the national orthopaedic implementation group. A summary of progress against each action
is captured below:

Progress against the recommendations for the WAO Orthopaedic review 2015

Recommendation 1

The wait associated with the CMATS is currently excluded from the 26-week target,
although some services are based in secondary care and there are variations in the way
in which CMATS are operating. As part of the response to recommendation 3 in the
Auditor General’s report NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales, the Welsh
Government should seek to provide clarity on how CMATS should be measured, in line
with referral to treatment time rules, to ensure that the waiting time accurately reflects
the totality of the patient pathway.

Update Accepted

Through the national orthopaedic implementation board they are currently developing a
national specification for CMATS. This national specification will ensure compliance with
the RTT revised rules and clearly state when an RTT clock should start and or stop.
This will be reflected within the revised RTT guidance being reviewed as part of the
recommendations to the NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales

Recommendation 2

Our work has identified that the rate of GP referrals across health board areas varies
significantly per 100,000 head of population. The variations are not immediately
explained by demographics suggesting differences in referral practices and potential
scope to secure better use of existing resources by reducing inappropriate referrals.
Health boards should ensure that clear referral guidelines are implemented and adhered
to, and that appropriate alternative services are available and accessible which best
meet the needs of the patient.

Update Accepted

Referral guidance forms part of the national outpatient redesign programme which
reports to the planned care board. Orthopaedic referral guidance will be covered
through this and supported by the national orthopaedic implementation group to ratify
national guidance as necessary.

Recommendation 3

Despite improvements in efficigpgiel, PHtfeVgaes is still not meeting all of its efficiency




measures related to orthopaedic services. Our fieldwork showed that there is scope for
even better use of orthopaedic resources, particularly in relation to outpatient
performance. As part of the response to recommendation 2 in the Auditor General’s
report NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales the Welsh Government and health
boards should work together to reshape the orthopaedic outpatient system and improve
performance to a level which, at a minimum, complies with Welsh Government targets
and releases the potential capacity set out in Appendix 5 of this report.

Update Accepted

Through the national efficiency board they have requested a review on possible national
areas of focus to support NHS efficiency and productivity. Planned care and a number
of possible efficiency measures have been proposed for review, this work includes
measures for orthopaedics.

Recommendation 4

Our work has identified that, at a national level, there were weaknesses in the ability to
influence the delivery of the National Orthopaedic Innovation and Delivery Board’s
objectives within health boards and to monitor and evaluate efforts to improve
orthopaedic services. When establishing similar national arrangements in the future,
including the National Orthopaedics Board, the Welsh Government should ensure that
the factors that led to the weaknesses in the Delivery Board are considered and actions
are put in place to mitigate those weaknesses being repeated.

Update Accepted

Regular reports on progress against the national orthopaedic plan is prepared and
shared with NHS chief executives to raise its profile and challenge pace of change. Itis
expected that evidence of local planning in line with the national plan forms part of the
assessment and agreement of the IMTPs each year

Recommendation 5

All health boards have made some progress in putting in place alternatives to
orthopaedic surgery, specifically CMATS, but our work found that these are often small
scale, at risk of funding pressures and lack any evaluation. The Welsh Government and
health boards should work together to undertake an evaluation of CMATS to provide
robust evidence as to whether they are providing sustainable solutions to managing
orthopaedic demand.

Update Accepted

Through the national orthopaedic implementation board they are currently developing a
national specification for CMATS. Each health board will then be expected to review
their service against the guidance to look at how their current provision meets the
specification and how it could further improve.

Recommendation 6:

NHS Wales collects and produces a great deal of information about the performance
and activity of musculoskeletal services, however, data relating to patient outcomes and

FdCkK Fdyje ol




patient experience is much sparser. The Welsh Government and health boards should
work together to develop a suite of outcome measures as part of the Outcomes
Framework, supported by robust information systems, which provide comprehensive
management information as to whether orthopaedic services are demonstrating benefits
to patients and minimising avoidable harm.

Update Accepted

National work on collecting patient reported outcomes (PROMSs) and experience
(PREMSs) measures has begun with orthopaedics being the first area of review. The
work commenced in BCU but is now being rolled out through a phased approach across
all health boards.

Yours sincerely

s P L e

Dr Andrew Goodall

Pack Page 52




	Agenda
	1 The Welsh Government’s Funding of Kancoat Ltd: Consideration of the draft report
	3 Paper(s) to note
	3.1 The Welsh Government’s Funding of Kancoat Ltd: Letters from the Welsh Government (6 January 2017) and (16 January 2017)
	PAC(5)-03-17 PTN2 - Letter from WG to Chair - 16 January 2017

	3.2 Cardiff Airport: Letter from the Welsh Government (16 January 2017)
	4 NHS Waiting Times for Elective Care in Wales
	PAC(5)-03-17 P2 - Letter from WG to the Chair on waiting times for elective care - 9 January 2017

	5 Orthopaedic Services: Update from the Welsh Government



